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STRATEGIC REPORT
The members of the Board of Governors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 July 2018

A list of all the governorswho served on the Board at any point during 2017-18 and up to the
date of signing, togetherwith their roles, is to be found in the statement of corporate
governanceand internalcontrol.

Legal Status
The Corporation was established under the Further & Higher EducationAct 1992 for the
purpose of conductingBarnet and Southgate College. Barnet and Southgate College is an
exempt charity for the purposes of Part 3 of the Charities Act 201 1.

Mission, Vision, Strategy and Objectives
The Board has retainedits long-standingoverarchingvision, mission and strategic objectives
which focusses on: quality and standards;jobs and progressionsand innovation and
inspiration. The Board has also agreed clear, thematically grouped objectives for the period
to 2021 that includes further development of apprenticeship opportunities, growth in higher
education provision and the development of commercial income. The Board has successfully
established a dynamicand responsiveapproach to the local and regional economic needs
by positioning the College in distinctive areas of educational delivery, such as Dentistry and
Assisted Living Technologieswhich gives our students an advantage in the London
employmentmarket.

Strategic objective: Quality and Standards
During 2017-18 the College had the number of students and trainees set out in table I
below:

Table 1. Number of students and trainees in 2017-18

Number

Type ofstudent
Students (mainly 16-18)funded under arrangementsmade by the
Secretaryof Statefor Education

3.096
83

16-18 Apprentices funded under arrangements made by the Secretary of
StateforEducation

910

19+ Apprentices funded under arrangements made by the Secretary of
State for Education

Other adult studentsfunded from the Secretary of State for Education
adulteducationbudget

7,190

Higher EducationStudents funded by the Higher Education Funding

294

Council

This is not a comprehensivelisting of the College's total student population.Amongst
students not listed above are adults not studyingfor particular qualifications. international
students and students studying "non-funded"qualifications designed to improve life chances
and social well-being.
Each student enters an individuallearning agreement with the College which lists the
qualifications the student wishes to attain. The most significant measure of whether the
College is achieving its quality improvement objectives is the proportion of students
achieving their qualifications.
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The College has a quality assurance program comprising its Self-Assessment Report (SAR)
lesson observation scheme and Teaching and Learning Coaches. The overall strengths and
areas for improvement for the whole College SAR have been informedby the selfassessmentreports for curriculum and business support areas. These.reports have been
validated at a series of Self-Assessment Validation Boards. The most recent SAR was
agreed in December2017, in which overall effectiveness of the College was judged to be
Good'. During 2018 the draft SAR has been updated and strengths include:
Significant improvement in the overall achievement rates for students on Study
Programmes.

Good developmentof employability skills with good progression onto further
learningor work
Strong and strategic partnerships with employers, local authorities and other
partners to ensure the College meets the needs of the local community
Good teaching and learning in a number of curriculum areas that stretches
learners and engages and motivate them
Very good personal and pastoral support, including information, advice and
guidance
The 2018 draft SAR was awaiting Board confirmation at the time of the Ofsted inspection in
December2018, immediatelyprior to publication of this report. Therefore the overall SAR
grade had not been agreed. At the time of signing, the Ofsted report was not available.
The College made continued progress in raising achievement rates in 2017-18. The
College's overall achievement rate data is given in table 2 below:

Table 2. Student achievementrates
Year
2017/18

CollegeData
86.2%

2016/17

84.6%

NationalRates
(not yet known for 2017/18)
84.4%

Strategic objective: Jobs and Progression
As part of the strategic vision for providing the best opportunitiesfor student employability.
the College negotiated an exclusive arrangement with REED NCFE to "guarantee" 16-18
students either a job opportunity, apprenticeship or an employmentplacement as a result of
successfully completing their studies with the College. REED NCFE also delivered specialist
employabilitytraining to 16-18 students to better equip students with the relevant skills to
secure progression into work.
The College works proactively with Job Centre Plus and Employersto support the strategic
priorities for reducing worklessness in the Boroughs of Barnet and Enfield and helping
employers recruit trained staff. Specifically, the College is one of the largest providers of
Sector Based Work Academies, delivering skills aligned to Local Employer needs.
The College has an excellent relationship with both its neighbouring local authoritiesand is
an active partner and key contributor to the respective strategic partnerships and
employmentand skills priorities. The College is representedat senior level on a range of
employmentand skills boards including the wider West LondonAlliance which covers the
major regeneration projects at Heathrow Airport, Brent Cross Retail Centre and Old Oak
Development.
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The College secured a significant apprenticeship levy contract with Grupo Antoninand
Matalan, delivering Business Improvement Techniques to staff working on the production
line. The College also has excellent links with NHS Central NorthWest London Trust. where
it is the preferred supplier of apprenticeship training, delivering Mental Health Training to
Mental Healthcare practitioners.

The College's ColindaleSkills Centre is located in the heart of one of the largest
regeneration programmes in London. The College has very good relationships with the
developers/employers: Mears, Multiplex, Crest Nicholson, St Georges and Barratts to name
a few and the Collegedelivers apprenticeshiptraining in most trades, including Plumbing,
Gas, Brickwork.Carpentryand Electrical. The College also provides recruitment services
and commercial training in this sector.
In 201 7/18 the College made significant progress with Study Programme opportunities and
delivered real and relevantwork placements to over 2,600 16-19 students.

Strategic objective: Innovation and Inspiration
All staff are supportedthrough the College's PerformanceConversationsand Learning and
Development processes. As part of this commitment the College has regular staff
development days and a 'Grow Wednesday' initiativewhich provides a dedicated time for
team work and professionaldevelopment. Following an all staff developmentday in early
2017, the College launched the concept of creating a "Perfect College" through using
creative facilitationsessions to drive step change within the College. All teams were asked to
identify the top 5 things in their team to be addressed and creative facilitation sessions have
commencedto identify outcomesto embed the step change required.

Particular Importancehas been placed on the developmentand use of Technology
Enhanced Learning and staff are encouraged to experiment and develop competence with
innovative digitaltechnologiesto stimulate our learners.
Through regular developmentalopportunities led by a team of creative learning
technologists. teachersand managers are introduced to innovative teaching techniques,
online learningtools and electronic resources. A wide variety of digital technologies are used
to facilitate and encourage innovative ways of learning. For example. teachers and learners
have access to learning spaces. equipped with iPads, interactive screens, virtual reality
headsets and other portable learning technologies.
Teachers experimentwith various innovative assessmentmethods, such as audio and video
assessment. and all assessment that is submitted online is checked for plagiarism. Students
have 24/7 accessto a plethora of blended learning resources across many subject areas
and topics to complementtheir learning. Learners and their carers can monitor their learning
and reviewtheir IndividualLearning Plans online.
A range of modern computing facilities are readily available to teachers and students.
including large interactivescreens, desktop and laptop computers.and tablets. Staff and
learners are invitedto bring and use their portabledevices for learning. Learners and staff
are also able to purchase portable devices at competitive prices via a partner.

To meet the needsof future employer and industry expectationsin digital skills, learners
have access to professionalcloud-based applications. such as Office 365 and G (i.e.
Google)Suite.
The table belowshows the College IT equipment that is availableto learners as of July
2018

All desktops and laptops available for learner access
All desktops with open access for learners
All tablets and portabledevices available for learners
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The College's Developmental Lesson Observation Scheme encourages teachers to
experiment with different and more innovative teaching and learning strategies and seek
feedback from a trained observer.Teachers have access to a range of resourcesto support
them in trying out new methodologies. These include How2, a database of tried and tested
teaching and learning strategiesand 'Bright Ideas', a forum developed by the Teaching and
Learning Coaches for sharing best practice.

Resources
The College has various resourcesthat it can deploy in pursuit of its strategic objectives.
During 2017/18, the College made significantinvestment to respond to the Government's
High Skills agenda and City Hall's emerging skill shortage priorities. This work included the
establishmentof a unique Assisted Living Technology wing to support the College's Health
and Wellbeing provision as well as a brand new Dental Technology suite, designed to offer
higher level apprenticeships and degree level technical education.
The College employs 462 people (expressed as full-time equivalents), of whom 233 are
teaching staff.
The College enrolled over 11,000 students. Further details can be found in Table I on page
3

The Group has £29 million of net assets (after allowing for £27 million pension liability) and
long-term debt of £17.Imillion. Tangible resources include the main college sites and £27
million held in current assets. The College occupied six premises during the year, with no
acquisitions or disposals taking place, other than Graseby House which was already vacated
and heldfordisposalin July 2017:
1)

2)

3)

4)
5)

6)

The Wood Street campus in High Barnet including Tudor Hall, plus a rented smaller
site knownas The Hyde.
The Southgate Campus, lying to the West of the High Street, which also incorporates
the local public library. This site is undergoing a strategic programmeof
refurbishment and modernisation.
The Colindale campus in Barnet, which also accommodatesthe local public library
and some communityfacilities.
Leased premises in Edmonton Green, Enfield.
Leased premises in Baird Road, Enfield. These premises are occupiedby the wholly
owned subsidiary company - Minchenden Business Centre Ltd.
Outsourced agreement for facilities at Hospitality House in East Finchley,which
accommodates hospitality and retail facilities.

The College has a good reputationlocally and nationally, working closely with partners, and
especially employers, to design and deliver provision that meets their needs,those of
students and of the local and wider community. Well-established partnerships exist with
many organisations, including local and regional businesses, local authorities, NHS trusts.
universities, community based organisations and the charitable sector. many of which result
in significant enrichment opportunities for students.
Over 1000 employers provide work experience placements across the college as a result of
the good links with businesses and other organisations.
The vast majority of curriculum areas have active links and partnershipswith employers to
enrich and inform curriculum delivery. Increasingly such partnershipsare being used
effectively to design a distinctive curriculum offer that meets their specific needs and meets
employer demand locally and regionally.
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Stakeholders
The College has many stakeholders including
its current. future and past students;

its staffand theirtrade unions;
the employers it works withl
the professional organisations in the sectors where it worksl
its partner schools and universities; the wider college community;
its local borough councils,the Greater LondonAssembly and the London LEAP

During the year the College extended its links and influence with all the above and sought to
play a significant part in local business and community affairs. The College is represented at
key strategic partnership meetings and works with local resident groups to further the
objectives of improving community partnership and strategic collaboration.

DEVELOPMENTANDPERFORMANCE
In addition to significantimprovementsto student success rates. which rose by almost 7%
for 16-18 year olds, College students excelled in a wide range of extra-curricularactivities
In addition, there have been a number of developmentsand achievementsduring the
2017/18 year and some of the highlights are detailed below:
©

Launchof CETEC Centre for Assisted Living in Autumn 2017 at the Southgate
Campus

©

e

©

e

Runner Up at the Mayor's Dragon Centre Awards 2017
Ranked Best College in London2016/17 by FE week in Autumn 2017
Five existing or former students from the College from Borehamwood Football Club
were called up for the full England College's FootballTeam
Three first year Foundation Degree in Childcare and Young People won the Dean's
Awards for Educationfrom the University of Derby
Shortlistedfor two TES Awards - Teacher of the Year and Contributionto Local
Community
Commission received and delivered for artwork from Foundation Art Level 3 students

by BarnetGeneralHospital
Launchof Dry Lining Sector BasedWork Academic in partnershipwith Connelly
Group

©

e
e

BTEC Business Level 3 cohort reached the finals of the Big Idea Competition backed
by London Metropolitan University
Girls volleyball team reached the finals of the AoC National Cup
Under 18sfootballacademy team won Southern Counties FloodlightDelphian
League.

e

e

Two ICT students won the London Borough of Barnet's InnovationAward for "use of
technology in adult residential care" at its Innovate Barnet competition
Three Mediastudents winning awards at the national Creative ConscienceAwards.

In order to remain at the forefront of preparationsfor London skills devolution,the Board of
Governors took effective steps to reorganise the Executive Team following the
announcement of the existing Principal to leave at the end of 201 8. The Board decided to
establish posts of separate Chief Executive and College Principal.
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The Board appointed a new Chief Executive following a comprehensiveselection process
undertaken during the Summer of 201 8 and is pleased to welcome Darren Mepham from
January 2019.The College continuedto make significant improvementsacross the whole
range of its activities. Innovativeand ground breaking facilities were completed to enable
the College to formally launch its Assisted Living Technology suite, the first of its kind in
further education, which complementsthe high quality specialistfacilities in dentistry and
provisionfor students with learning difficulties and/or disabilities. Further accommodation
achievementsinclude a media "green room" studio at Wood Street and the completion in
December2018 of an initial three-year programme of refurbishmentstotalling £10 million at
the Southgatecampus.
The College also succeeded in developing its apprenticeship levy network, which led to over
£500k of new levy business. This was matched by equally impressive performanceto ensure
the college's AEB funding overall target was achieved.

Financial Results
The Group generated a deficit before other gains and losses of fl1 ,484k. Adjusting for non
operating costs relating to pensions, the operating position was a surplus of £360k. which
was an improvement on the results in 2016/17.
The total comprehensive income in 2017/18 is stated after accounting for the disposal of the
Graseby House building,which had been held for resale in the accounts for 2016/17. Also
included is fl .6m further profit on the disposal of the former Grahame Park campus which
has been realised following the final account to development partners which was closed in
September2018.
Capital Expenditure
The college's redevelopment involved tangible fixed asset additions during the year
amounting to £15million. This was split between refurbishment costs of £3.8 million, £0.4
million of which was work-in-progressat the end of the year, and equipment purchased of
fl .3 million. In the main. this related to the strategic developmentof the Southgate campus

Cash flows and liquidity
At £4.4 million (2016/17 £4.6 million). net cash flow from operating activities was reasonably
strong. The net cashflow resulted from the disposal of Graseby House and the management
ofotherresources.

The size of the College'stotal borrowing and its approach to interest rates has been
calculated to ensure a reasonable cushion between the total cost of servicing debt and
operating cashflow. During the year this margin was comfortablyexceeded. Long term
borrowing in the form of secured bank loans reduced to £17.Im (£17.9m in 2016/17).
Reserves
The Group has accumulatedreserves of £29 million and cash and short term investment
balances of £23 million. The Group wishes to continue to accumulate reserves and cash
balances in order to create a contingency fund and to continue its programme of investment
in facilities for students. The College has no formal Reserves Policy but recognisesthe
importance of reserves in the financial stability of any organisation.and ensures that there
are adequate reserves to support the College's core activities.As at the balance sheet date
the Income and Expenditurereserve stands at £18.2 million (2017: £10.8 million. as
restated). It is the Board of Governors' intention to provide reserves for reinvestment over
the life of the strategic plan through the generation of annual operatingsurpluses.
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Sources of income
The Group has significantreliance on the education sector funding bodies for its principal
funding source, largely from recurrent grants. In 2017/18 the FE funding bodies provided
88% of the Group's total income.

Group companies
The College has one subsidiary company, Minchenden Business Centre Limited. The
principal activities are the body and paint training and apprenticeship vehicle restoration, and
provision of a catering service to the College. Any surpluses generated by the subsidiary are
transferred to the College under deed of covenant. In the current year, a deficit of £0.3

millionwas generated.
Financial Health
The College is required to complete the annual Finance Record for the Educationand Skills
FundingAgency (ESFA). The ESFA has a four point scoring system for college financial
health ranging from "unsatisfactory' to "outstanding".Using this methodologyfor the
submission of the Finance Record as at 31 July 2018 produces a financial health gradingof
'Good', which is consideredan acceptable outcome.
Performance Monitoring
The College has adopted a dashboard-style Key Performance Indicator report for the Board
of Governors to highlight key measures which impact on performance and have longer term
implications for future funding, quality and standards of provision. The key measures being
monitored include: achievement of funding targetsl learner attendance and retentionl
achievementratesl performanceagainst College priorities for teaching and learnings
operational surplus and cashflowl learner and employer satisfaction.The dashboard has
been kept under review and a revised set of measures will be monitored during 2018-19,
including measures on value for money.

The defined benefit obligations of the Local Government Pension Scheme -- which provides
a pension for the College's business support staff - increasedfrom £63.5m in 2016-17 to
£64.1m. In the same period, the pension asset has increasedfrom £33.5m to £36.8m. Net
pension liability has decreased to £27.3m.

Treasury policies and objectives
Treasury managementis the managementof the College's cash flows, its banking, money
market and capital market transactionsl the effective control of the risks associated with
those activitiesl and the pursuit of optimum performanceconsistent with those risks.
The College has a separate treasury management policy in place

Payment performance
The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998 requires Colleges. in the
absence of agreement to the contrary, to make payment to suppliers within 30 days of either
the provision of goods or services or the date on which the invoice was received. The target
set by the Treasuryfor payment to suppliers within 30 days is 95 per cent. During the
accounting period IAugust 2017 to 31 July 2018, the College paid 82 per cent of its
invoiceswithin 30 days.

Prior year adjustment
The College has reviewed its accounting treatment for subcontracted provision and details
are contained in note 25 to the accounts. The effect of this adjustment is to reduce the
reserves at I July 2016 by £500,000 and to increase the accruals brought forward at that
date by the same amount. For the prior year ended 31 July 2017 the effect is to increase
costs by £250,000,reduce prepaymentsby £750,000 and reduce the reserves at 31 July

2017 by £750,000.

9

BARNETANDSOUTHGATECOLLEGE

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 July 2018

PostBalance SheetEvents
The Board confirmed continued financial support to Minchenden Business Centre Ltd for a
period of 12 months until December 2019.

Future Developments
A summary of the future developments for the College is contained under the heading of
Mission,Vision, Strategy and Objectives on pages 3-6.

Going Concern
After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Governors considers that the College has
adequateresources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this
reason,it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The College has a comprehensive risk management approach that is supportedby
appropriate policies, proceduresand training. A detailed risk register and risk reduction plan
is maintained and these are regularly monitoredand updated by the ExecutiveLeadership
Group. The College adopts a 'top down, bottom up' approach to identification.recording and
assessment of risk, to ensure all significant risks are identified and assessed appropriately.
The College has undertaken a range of staff development and Governor training sessions to
raise awareness and embed the concept of risk management across the whole College.
The Audit Committee has oversight of the risk management control environmentand
scrutinisedthe risk register at each meeting. Risk management training is also provided to
staffand managers.
During the year the InternalAudit Service reviewed the College's systemsfor governance.
risk management and internal control and confirmed its opinion that the College
arrangementsare generally adequate and effective. There was one fundamental weakness
identified,surrounding the reconciliationof historical student debt. This has been treated as
a high priority and significant progress has already been made in resolvingthe underlying
issue
The College uses an electronic version of the risk register to support the managementof
risk. The following areas were assessed as being the principal risks associated with the
delivery of the College's strategic objectives in 2017/18:
Main Risks identified in 2017/18
KeyAction taken
Failure to implement medium- and
long-termaccommodationplans
might result in poor learner
experienceand loss ofstudent

A strategy for Southgate is being developed and

income.

implemented. Major projects use independentteams
to ensure timescales are adhered to and all parts of
the projects remain compliantl smaller projects are
identifiedand resourcedannually

IT systems failure, leading to loss of
key studentrecords, personnelor
financial data. disruption to teaching
and learning such as register taking.
the Virtual Learning Environmentor
key business processes in MIS or

The College has robust back up procedures for key
data and system redundancy to keep key services
running if part of the network infrastructure is lost.
There is an IT Server Risk category assessment
which identifies key processes to be restored and an
IT Disaster Recovery Plan in place which is updated

Finance.

and tested regularly.
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Loss or damageto College buildings
by fire or other incident, leading to
injury or loss of life and disruption to
teaching and learningwith
consequential impact on recruitment,
substantial financial loss and / or
reputationaldamage.

The College insures all its premises against fire and
other perils with a reputable insurer.
Business Continuity Plan in place that will mitigate the
immediate impact of a major incident.
Sourcing of alternativepremises where there is spare
capacity, or temporary accommodation.
Regular fire evacuationsare held at each site.

Inadequate accessto reliable and

FE sector standard data validation routines are run
and checkedregularly

timely managementinformation
reports.

Curriculum Quality and Performancemeetings are
held regularly to review quality, data and financial
performance.
Comprehensive MIS system with excellent reporting
facilities in place and data dashboards to support
management review and action.

Failure ofkeyfranchise delivery
partner

Quarterly meetings to review any issues with partners
arising from learner feedback, audits or unannounced
visits sothataction can betaken.
Due diligence is carried out on all partners before
contractingwith a standard pre-approvedcontract to
ensure they are financially sound and to reduce the
risk.

During the year, a number of concerns were raised by an individualwhistleblowerunder the
whistleblowing policy. The Board instructed Mazars LLP to undertakean independent
forensic investigation, which concluded that there had been no fraudulent activity or
impropriety in any of the areas investigated. The investigation did however identify some
helpful proceduralimprovementswhich will be reviewed by the Board.

KEYPERFORMANCEINDICATORS

Key performanceIndicator

Measured'arget

Actual for 201 7/18

Student numbertargets(16-18)
Studentoverallachievement

3179

3096

88%

86.8%

Achievementof AEBgrant allocation

100%

100%

Operating Surplus as % of income

4.1%

1.5%

Student achievements
Students continueto prosper at the College The overall achievement rate improved by 1.8%
in 2017/18.
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OTHERINFORMATION

Public Benefit
Barnet and Southgate College is an exempt charity under the Part 3 of the Charities Act
201I and is regulatedby the Secretary of State for Education.The membersof the Board of
Governors,who are trustees of the charity, are disclosed on page 16. In setting and
reviewing the College's strategic objectives, the Board of Governors has had due regard for
the Charity Commission's guidance on public benefit and particularlyupon its supplementary
guidance on the advancement of education.
In delivering its mission, the College provides identifiable public benefits through the
advancementof educationto over 11,000 students, including 283 students with high needs.
The college provides courses without charge to young people, to those who are unemployed
and adults taking English and maths courses. The college adjusts its courses to meet the
needs of local employers and provides training to 993 apprentices. The college is committed
to providing information, advice and guidance to the students it enrols and to finding suitable
courses for as many students as possible regardless of their educational background.
The College has a dedicated Safeguarding and Equality team who ensure that any issues
relatingto the health, safety and well-being of students are dealt with promptly and
effectively. In 201 7-18, the team supported 322 students.

Equality
The College is committedto ensuring equality of opportunity for all its learners, staff and the
broader community which it serves. We welcome. celebrate and value the diversity of our
learning community and seek to promote an inclusive learning and working environment
where everyone can achieve to their full potential. We have a zero tolerance of
discrimination,harassment or bullying of any kind. This policy is monitoredand reviewed on
an annual basis. The College's Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy is publishedon the
College'sIntranetand website.
The College publishes an Annual Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Report and three yearly
EqualityObjectives to ensure compliance with all relevant equality legislationincluding the
EqualityAct 2010. The College undertakes equality impact assessmentson all new policies
and procedures. Equality impact assessments are also undertakenfor existing policies and
procedureson a prioritisedbasis.
The College is a 'Positive about Disabled People' employer and has committedto the
principles and objectives of the Positive about Disabled People standard. The College
considers all employment applications from disabled persons, bearing in mind the aptitudes
of the individuals concerned. and guarantees an interview to any disabled applicant who
meets the essential criteria for the post. Where an existing employee becomes disabled.
every effort is made to ensure that employment with the College continues. The College's
policy is to provide training. career development and opportunitiesfor promotionwhich, as
far as possible, provide identical opportunitiesto those of non-disabledemployees.
The College has committedto the 'Mindful Employer' initiativeto assist the mental health
wellbeing of staff. The College achieved the Investors in Diversity Award in February 2017
The College provides training on Equality& Diversity on a regular basis and equality and
diversity forms part of the induction training for all new starters.
The Single Equality Scheme
The College's Single Equality Scheme contains a statement on Disability as follows

12

BARNETANDSOUTHGATECOLLEGE

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 July 2018

The College recognises that people with disabilities. learning difficulties and mental health

needs experiencediscriminationwithin society.
Within three years. we want to take substantial and concrete steps to challenge this and to
help ensure fairness and equality of access to all aspects of College life. We will:
e

e

e

actively oppose stereotypedresponses to disabled people and work to promote a
positive and inclusive environment in relation to education, training and employment
in every area of College life
ensure that students with learning difficulties, disabilities or mental health needs are
an integral part of the College community and share fully in a positive ethos and
culture ofcelebratingsuccess
continue to provide high quality learning through our specialist LLDD Centre of
Excellence

e

©

©

ensure that there is access to all learning and wider College facilities within the
framework of the relevant legislation
ensure that harassment or bullying of students with learning difficulties. disabilities or
mental health needs is not tolerated in any area of College life. Any such behaviour
will be challenged through appropriate College procedures
make reasonableadjustmentsto enable the employmentof staff with disabilitiesor
mental health needs on equal terms and conditions with all other staff
ensure that staff and students from a representative range of learning difficulties,
disabilitiesor mental health needs have full opportunity to impact on College policy

and procedure
continue to work within the principles of the Mindful Employer Charter
ensure that employment policies and procedures will reflect this position statement.

Staff involvement
The Board of Governorsconsiders good communicationwith its staff to be very important.
As such. a number of communication methods are in operation to ensure that information
flows throughout the organisation. A range of communication methods have been
implemented and discussed with staff to ensure regular and relevant communication flows
within the organisation.

Communication methodscurrently in use include
weekly managementmeetings held with all Heads of Service to communicate
key messages from the Executive Leadership Group for cascading to teamsl
weekly newsletters to all staffs
regular email updates from the Principal;
regular departmental team meetingsl
termly all staff briefingsl half termly meetings with recognised trade unionsl
monthly organisational development committee meetings with representatives
fromeach departmentsand
a staffintranetsite.
The informationflow and methods of communicationhave been publicisedto all staff to
encourage engagementand feedback and are under regular review through the
organisational development committee.
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Trade union facility time
The Trade Union (FacilityTime Publication Requirements)Regulations 2017 require the
college to publish information on facility time arrangementsfor trade union officials at the
rnllnnD

Numbers of employees who were provided with union
facility time arrangementsin the relevant period

16(allbetween1-50%of time)

FTEemployeenumber

1.4FTEintotal(based on
remissiontime given)

Total cost of facility time

£65k

Totalpay bill

£22m

Percentageof total bill spent on facility time

0.30%

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage
of total paid facility time

100%

Disclosure of information to auditors
The members who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as
they are each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the College's auditors
are unawarel and each member has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken to
be aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the College's auditors are
aware of that information.
Approved by order of the members of the Board of Governors on 18'h December2018 and
signed on its behalfby:

,.f '

Vice-Chair of the Board of Governors
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control
The following statement is provided to enable readers of the annual report and accounts of
the College to obtain a better understandingof its governance and legal structure.

The College endeavoursto conduct its business
In accordancewith the seven principles identified by the Committee on
Standards in Public Life (selflessness, integrity, objectivity. accountability.
openness,honestyand leadership)I
In full accordancewith the guidance to Collegesfrom the Association of College
Codeof Good Governancefor English Colleges
Havingdue regard to UK Corporate GovernanceCode ("the Code") insofar as it
is applicableto the further education sector.
The College is committedto exhibiting best practice in all aspects of corporate governance
and in particular the College / Board complies with Code of Good Governance for English
Colleges, althoughit has not been formally adopted. We have also not adopted and
therefore do not apply the UK Corporate GovernanceCode. However, we have reported on
our CorporateGovernancearrangements by drawing upon best practice available, including
those aspects of the UK Corporate GovernanceCode we consider to be relevant to the
further education sector and best practice.
In the opinion of the Governors, the College complies with all the provisions of the Code, and
it has compliedthroughout the year ended 31 July 2018. The Board of Governors
recognises that, as a body entrusted with both public and privatefunds, it has a particular
duty to observethe highest standards of corporate governance at all times.
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The Board of Governors
The members who served on the Board during the year and up to the date of signature of
this report were as listed below
Name

Date of
Appointment &

Term of Office

Status of

Appointment

Committees Served and
Attendance

External

Board -12 of13

(Chair of the Board
of Governors)

Search-4 of4

Reappointment
Ann Zlnkin

01/09/2013

4 years

& 13/07/2017

Remuneration - I of I

Puneet Anand

20/09/2018

Initial I yr
leading to 4 yrs

External

Board -3 of3

Mervin Archer

01/09/2013

4 years

External

Board -13 of13
Audit - 6 of 6

& 15/06/2017

Sue Baldwin

29/01/2015

4 years

External

Board -ll

of13

4 years

External

Board -ll

of13

01/01/2017

FionaBulmer

01/09/2013

Search -4 of4

& 15/06/2017

Remuneration - I of I

David Byrne
Sheila Dawson

01/03/2012

01/09/2013

4 years
4 years

Ex-0fficio

Board -ll

of13

Principal

Search - 4 of4

External

Board - 13 of13
Audit - 7 of 7

& 13/07/2017

Remuneration - I of I

Graham Duncan

01/09/2013

Board -12 of13

4 years

Audit - 7 of 7

& 21/06/2017

Search- 3 of4
Remuneration - I of I

Seb Karaasanov

07/12/2017

2 years

BernardManson

01/08/2016

2 years

External

Board -9 of9

Initial I yr

External

Board -l of2

Board -7 ofll

IUntil 31/07/2018)

Felicia Hanson
Ofori-Quaah

02/11/2018

Pooja Patel

07/12/2017

2 years

Student

Board - 8 ofll

HarvinderRattan

16/10/2018

Initial I yr
leadingto 4 yrs

External

Board -2 of2

ChristallaTsaUala

11/11/2015

2 years

Staff

Board -12 of13

leading to 4 yrs

& lO/11/2017

The Clerk to the Corporation is Melissa Drayson
It is the Board's responsibility to bring independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy
performance, resources and standards of conduct.
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The Board is provided with regular and timely information on the overall financial
pertormance of the College together with other information such as performance against
funding targets, proposed capital expenditure, quality matters and personnel-related matters
such as health and safety and environmental issues. The Board is scheduled to meet ten
times a year and has two strategic away days in December and May. During the period, the
Chair convened two additional Special Board meetings during the senior postholder
recruitment process.
The Board conducts its business through three committeesl each committee has Terms of
Reference, which have been approved by the Board. These committees are Audit.
Remuneration and Search. Full minutes of Board meetings, except those deemed to be
confidential by the Board, are available from the College website (barnetsouthaate.ac.uk)
and Clerk to the Corporation at the College's registered address.
The Clerk to the Corporation maintains a register of financial and personal interests of the
governors. The register is available for inspection at the above address.
All governors are able to take independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties
at the College's expense and have access to the Clerk to the Corporation, who is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that all applicable procedures and regulations are
complied with. The appointment. evaluation and removal of the Clerk are matters for the
Board as a whole.
Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to governors in a timely manner, prior to
Board meetings. Briefings are also provided on an ad hoc basis.
The Board has a strong and independent non-executive element and no individual or group
dominates its decision-making process. The Board considers that each of its non-executive
members is independent of management and free from any business or other relationship
which could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement.
There is a clear division of responsibility in that the roles of the Chair and Accounting Officer
are separate.

Appointments to the Board
Any new appointments to the Board are a matter for the consideration of the Board as a
whole. The Board has a Search committee, consisting of four members of the Corporation,
which is responsible for the selection and nomination of any new governor for the Board's
consideration. The Board is responsible for ensuring that appropriate training is provided as
rnnlllrnd
Governors are appointed for a term of office not exceeding four years and, having regard to
the recommendations made in the AoC Code of Good Governance in English Colleges, no
more than eight years will normally be served by members unless in exceptional
circumstances

Board performance
The Board carried out a self-assessment of its own performance for the year ended 31st July
2018 and graded itself as "Good"
Remuneration Committee
Throughout the year ended 31 July 2018. the College's Remuneration committee comprised
the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Board of Governors plus two other governors. The
Committee's responsibilities are to review the performance of the Accounting Officer, other
Senior Post Holders and the Clerk. to determine appropriate salary levels and to
advise/inform the Board accordingly.
Details of remuneration for the year ended 31 July 2018 are set out in note 7 to the financial
statements.
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Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprisesa minimum of three external governors and may co-opt up
to two memberswho are not governors. The Accounting Officer, the Chair of the Board, and
staff and student governors are not eligible to be members The Committee operates in
accordancewith written Terms of Reference which are reviewedannually and approved by
tne Board
The Audit Committee meets on at least a termly basis and provides a forum for reporting by
the College's internal, regularity and financial statements auditors,who have access to the
Committee for independent discussion, without the presence of College management. The
Committee also receivesand considers reports from the main FE funding bodies as they
affect the College's business.
The College's internal auditors review the systems of internal control. risk management
controls and governance processes in accordance with an agreed plan of input and report
their findings to management and the Audit Committee.
Management is responsible for the implementation of agreed audit recommendations and
internal audit undertakes periodic follow-up reviews to ensure such recommendations have
been implemented.

The Audit Committeeadvises the Board of Governors on the appointmentof internal.
regularity and financial statements auditors and their remuneration for both audit and non
audit work as well as reporting annually to the Board.
The Committee advises the Board on the College's arrangements for risk management and
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money).The Committee also
oversees the Board of Governors' policies on fraud, irregularity and whistleblowingand
ensures that all allegations of fraud or irregularity are properlyfollowed up and that
investigationoutcomes are reported to the auditors and funding body as appropriate.

Internal Control
Scope ofresponsibility
The Board of Governors is ultimately responsible for the College's system of internal control
and for reviewing its effectiveness. However. such a system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatementor loss.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Principal. as Accounting
Officer, for maintaininga sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of
the College's policies. aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets
for which he is personallyresponsible, in accordance with the responsibilitiesassigned to
him in the Financial Memorandum/ Financial Agreement between Barnet and Southgate
College and the funding bodies. He is also responsible for reporting to the Board any
material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

The purpose of the system of internal control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectivest it can therefore only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.The system of internal
control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievement of College policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those
risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to managethem efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Barnet and
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Southgate Collegefor the year ended 31 July 2018 and up to the date of approval of the
annualreport and accounts.

Capacityto handlerisk
The Board of Governors has reviewedthe key risks to which the College is exposed together
with the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate
those risks. The Board is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managingthe College's significantrisks that has been in place for the period
ended 31 July 2018 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts. This
process is regularlyreviewed by the Board.
The risk and control framework
The system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information.
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation
and accountability. In particular. it includes:

Comprehensivebudgeting systems with an annual budget, which is reviewed and
agreed by the Board of Governors
Regular reviews by the Board of Governors of periodic and annual financial
reports which indicate financial performance against forecasts
Setting targets to measure financial and other performance
Clearly defined capital investment control guidelines
The adoption of formal project management disciplines, where appropriate.
The College engages an internal audit service, which operates in accordancewith the
requirementsof the ESFA's Post 76 AuditCode of Pracf/ce.The work of the internal audit
service is informedby an analysis of the risks to which the College is exposed, and annual
Internal audit plans are based on this analysis. The analysis of risks and the internal audit
plans are endorsedby the Board on the recommendationof the audit committee.In addition
to regular reports to Audit Committee,the internal auditor provides the Board of Governors
with an annual reporton internal audit activity in the College. The report includesthe service
provider's independentopinion on the adequacyand effectivenessof the College's system
of risk management. controls and governance processes.
Review of effectiveness
As Accounting Ofllcer, the Principal has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. His review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is

informedby:
The work of the internal auditors
The work of the executive managers within the College who have responsibility
for the developmentand maintenanceof the internal control framework
Commentsmade by the College's financial statementsand regularity auditors in
their managementletters and other reports.
The Accounting Officer has been advised on the implications of the result of his review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Audit Committee, which oversees the
work of the internalauditor and other sources of assurance, and a plan to address
weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.
The Executive Leadership Group receives reports setting out key performance and risk
indicators and considers possible control issues brought to their attention by early warning
mechanisms, which are embedded within the departments and reinforced by risk awareness
training. The Executive Leadership Group and the Audit Committee also receive regular
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reports from internal audit and other sources of assurance, which include recommendations
for improvement. The Audit Committee'srole in this area is confined to a high-levelreview of
the arrangements for internal control. The Board's agenda includes a regular report on risk
and control from the Audit Committee and the Executive Leadership Group. The emphasis is
on obtaining the relevant degree of assuranceand not merely reporting by exception.At its
November 2018 meeting, the Audit Committee carried out the annual assessment of risk and
internal control for the year ended 31 July 2018 by considering documentationfrom the
ExecutiveLeadership Group and internal audit, and taking account of events since 31 July
2018

Based on the advice of the Audit Committeeand the Accounting Officer. the Board is of the
opinion that the College has an adequateand effective framework for governance. risk
managementand control, and has fulfilled its statutory responsibilityfor "effective and
efficient use of resources. the solvency of the institution and the body and the safeguarding
oftheirassets"
Approved by order of the membersof the Board of Governors on 18'hDecember2018 and
signed on its behalf by:

GrahamDuncan
Vice-Chairof the Boardof Governors

LizzieJones
AccountingOfficer
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Statement of Regularity. Propriety and Compliance
The Board of Governorshas considered its responsibility to notify the Educationand Skills
Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity. impropriety and non-compliancewith terms
and conditions of funding, under the College's grant funding agreement and contracts with
ESFA. As part of our considerationwe have had due regard to the requirementsof the grant
fundingagreementsandcontractswith ESFA.
We confirm on behalf of the Board. that after due enquiry, and to the best of our knowledge.
we are able to identifyany material irregular or improper use of funds by the College, or
material non-compliancewith the terms and conditions of funding under the College's grant
fundingagreementsandcontractwith ESFA.
We confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance
have been discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement,
these will be notified to the ESFA.

GrahamDuncan
Vice.-Chairof the Boardof Governors

LizzieJones
AccountingOfficer
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIESOF THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
GOVERNORS
The governors. as charity trustees. are required to present audited financial statementsfor
eachfinancialyear.
Within the terms and conditions of the college's grant funding agreementsand contracts with
ESFA, the corporation, through its accounting officer, is required to prepare financial
statements and an operating and financial review for each financial year in accordance with
the 2015 Statement of Recommended Practice -- Accounting for Further and Higher
Education, ESFA's college accounts direction and the UK's Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice,and which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the college and its
surplus / deficit of income over expenditurefor that period.
In preparing the financial statements,the Board is required to
e
8

select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
state whether applicable Accounting Standards have been followed. subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements
preparefinancial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriateto
assume that the College will continue in operation.

The corporation is also required to prepare a Members' Reportwhich describes what it is
trying to do and how it is going about it, including information about the legal and
administrativestatus of the college.
The corporation is responsiblefor keeping proper accounting records which disclose. with
reasonable accuracy at any time. the financial position of the college and which enable it to
ensure that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with relevant legislation
including the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 and Charities Act 201 1. and relevant
accountingstandards. It is responsiblefor taking steps that are reasonablyopen to it to
safeguard its assets and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
The corporation is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the college's websitesthe
work carried out by auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and.
accordingly,the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to
the financial statementssince they were initially presented on the website. Legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
Governors are responsible for ensuring that expenditure and income are applied for the
purposes intended by Parliament and that the financial transactions conform to the
authorities that govern them. In addition. they are responsible for ensuring that funds from
ESFA are used only in accordance with ESFA's grant funding agreements and contracts and
any other conditions that may be prescribed from time to time. Governors must ensure that
there are appropriatefinancial and managementcontrols in place to safeguardpublic and
other funds and ensure they are used properly. In addition. Governors are responsiblefor
securing economical,efficient and effective management of the college's resourcesand
expenditure so that the benefits that should be derived from the application of public funds
from ESFA are not put at risk.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Governors on 18thDecember2018 and
signed on its behalf by:

Graham Duncan,Vice-Chair of the Board of Governors
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INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'S REPORTTO THE CORPORATIONOF BARNET AND
SOUTHGATECOLLEGE

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Barnet and Southgate College and its
subsidiary company(the Group) for the year ended 31 July 2018 which comprise the
Statement of ComprehensiveIncome,the Statement of Changes in Reserves,the Balance
Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flowsand notes to the financial statements,including a
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
This report is made solely to the Governors, as a body, in accordancewith the College's
Articles of Government.Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Governors, as a body,those matterswe are requiredto state to them in an auditor's report
and for no other purpose.To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyoneother than the Governors, as a body. for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.
In our opinion, the financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the College and the Group as at
31 July 2018 and of the surplus for the year then endedl
have been properlypreparedin accordancewith the 2015 Statementof
Recommended Practice - Accounting for Further and Higher Education.

Basisforopinion
We conducted our audit in accordancewith InternationalStandards on Auditing(UK)(ISAs
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilitiesunder those standards are further described in
the Auditor's responsibilitiesfor the audit of the financial statementssection of our report.
We are independent of the College in accordancewith the ethical requirementsthat are
relevantto our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we havefulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordancewith these
requirements.We believethat the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relatingto going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relationto which the ISAs
(UK) require us to reportto you where:
the Governors' use of the going concern basis of accountingin the preparation of the
financial statementsis not appropriate;or
the Governors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the College's ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months
from the date when the financial statements are authorisedfor issue.

Other information
The Governors are responsiblefor the other information.The other informationcomprises
the information includedin the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.Our opinion on the financial statementsdoes not cover the other
information and. except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report,we do not
express any form of assuranceconclusiontherein.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE CORPORATION OF BARNET AND

SOUTHGATECOLLEGE(Contd)
In connection with our audit of the financial statements. our responsibilityis to read the other
information and. in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistenciesor apparent material
misstatements. we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If. based on the

work we have performed,we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothingto report in this regard.

Matterson which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledgeand understanding of the Groupand its environment obtained
in the course of the audit. we have not Identified material misstatementsin the members
report or operating and financial review or the statement of corporate governance and

internalcontrol.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Post 16

Audit Code of PracticeIssued by the Department for Educationrequires us to report to you if
ouropinlon:
'
.

adequate accounting records have not been keptl or
the annual accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records; or
we have not receivedall the information and explanationsrequired for our audit.

responsibilities of Governors
As explained more fully in the Governors' responsibilities statement.the Governors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view. and for such internal control as the Governors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Governors are responsiblefor assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. disclosing. as applicable. matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Governors either
intend to liquidate the College or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to

do so

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranceis a high level of
assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatementscan arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if. individually or in the aggregate.they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

financialstatements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE CORPORATION OF GARNET AND

SOUTHGATECOLLEGE(Contd)
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements.
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resultingfrom
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may involve collusion.
forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations.or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understandingof internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit proceduresthat are appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the purpose of
expressingan opinion on the eHectivenessof the group's internal control.
Evaluatethe appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accountingestimates and related disclosures made by the Governors.
Concludeon the appropriateness of the Governors' use of the going concern basis of
accountingand. based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material
uncertaintyexists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertaintyexists. we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate.
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However. future events or conditions may cause
the College to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluatethe overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements.
including the disclosures. and whether the financial statements represent the
underlyingtransactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the group to express an opinion on the
consolidatedfinancial statements. We are responsiblefor the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion
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Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
New BridgeStreet House
30-34 New Bridge Street
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Notes Yearended31July

2018

2018

Group
£'ooo

College
£'ooo

2
3

37,422

37.422

3.856

4
5
6

2

Yearended31July

2017

2017

Group
£'ooo
As
Restated

College
£'ooo
As
Restated

3.851

36.787
4,700
2

1.261

2
698

36.437
4.755
2

1,340

871

61

61

7

7

42,602

42,034

42,836

42,072

7

25.016

24,498

24.705

7
8

258

235

512

24.346
512
14.463
2.307
1,768

INCOME

Funding body grants
Tuition fees and education contracts
Other grants and contracts

Other income
Endowment and investment income

Total income
EXPENDITURE

Staffcosts
Fundamentalrestructuring costs

14.821

14.531

10

2,164

2,154

9

1,826

1.826

14,933
2.316
1,768

Totalexpenditure

44,085 43,244

44,234

43,396

(Deficit) before other gains and losses

(1,484)

(i,no)

(1,398)

(1,324)

Profiton dispasalofassets

4.875

4.875

3.233

3.233

Surplus beforetax

3,392

3,665

1,835

1,909

3,392

3,665

1,835

1,909

3.808

3.808

269

269

7,200

7,472

2,104

2,178

(1,484)

(1,210)

(1,398)

(1,324)

1.030
814

1,030
814

980
701

701

360

634

283

357

Other operating expenses

Depreciation
Interestand otherfinance costs

Taxation

(Deficit)/surplus for the year
Actuarial gain in respect of pensions schemes

20

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Operating Surplus (Deficit) is realised as follows

(Deficit) before other gains and losses
Add back LGPS Deficit Reduction Payments

Add back FRSI 02 Pension Interest Charge

Operating Surplus
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Barnet and Southgate College
Consolidated and College Statement of Changes in Reserves
Income and

Expenditure Revaluation
Group
Balance at 31st July 2017, as restated
Surplus/(deficit) from the income and expenditure account
Other comprehensive income

account
£'ooo

reserve
£'ooo

l0.774

11,078

3,392

Total
£'ooo
21,852

3,392
3,808

3,808

Transfers betweenrevaluationand income and expenditure
203

(203)

7.403

(203)

7,200

Balance at31stJuly2018

18,177

l0,875

29,052

College
Balance at 31st July 2017, as restated

11,641

11,078

22.719

resewes

Total comprehensive income for the year

Surplus/(deficit) from the income and expenditure account
Other comprehensive income
Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure
resewes

3,665
3.808
203

(203)

Total comprehensive income for the year

7,676

(203)

7.472

19,317

l0,875

30,192

Balance at 31st July 2018

3.665
3,808

Income and
Expenditure Revaluation
account
reserve
£'ooo
£'ooo
Group
Balance at 31st July 2016, as restated

8,267

11.481

Total
£'ooo
19.748

Surplus/(deficit) from the income and expenditure account
Other comprehensive income
Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure
reseNes

1,835
269
403

(403)

Total comprehensive income for the year

2,507

(403)

2.104

l0,774

11,078

21,852

9.060

11,481

20.541

Balance at 31st July 2017
College
Balance at 31st July 2016, as restated

1,835

269

Surplus/(deficit) from the income and expenditure account
Other comprehensive income
Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure
resewes

1.909
269
403

(403)

Total comprehensive income for the year

2,581

(403)

2,177

11,641

11,078

22,719

Balance at 31st July 2017
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1,909
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Barnet and Southgate College
Balance sheets as at31 July
Notes

Fixed assets
Tangiblefixed assets

10

Investments

11

Current assets
Stocks
Trade and otherreceivables
Asset held for resale
Cash and cash equivalents

Group

College

Group
As
Restated

College
As
Restated

2018

2018

2017

2017

£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo

81.402

81.376

78,525 78.504

81,402

81,376

78,525

30

Z$,s04

60

12

2,935

4,111

3.909
3,393

17

23,035

17,595

3,393
17,602

26:000

23,005
27.116

24:957

25:807

(l0.738)

(l0,688)

(11,008)

(l0,970)

Netcurrentassets

15:262

16.428

13,949

14.837

Total assets less current liabilities

96,664

97,804

92,474

93,341

4.812

Less: Creditors - amounts falling due within one
13

year

Less: Creditors -- amounts falling due after more

than one year

14

(39.662)

(39.662)

(39.959) (39,959)

16
16

(27,322)

(27.322)

(628)

(628)

(30,035)
(628)

?9,0s2

gg,192

Provisions
Defined benefit obligations
Other provisions

Totalnetassets

(30,035)
(628)
2?,719

Unrestricted reserves
Income and expenditure account

20

18,177

19,317

l0.774

11,641

Revaluation reserve

19

l0.875

l0.875

11.078

11.078

29,052

30,192

21,852

22,719

Totalunrestricted

reserves

The financial statements on pages 26 to 51 were approved and authorised for issue by the Corporation

on 18 December2018and weresigned on its behalf on that date by:

Graham Duncan
Vice-Chair of the Board of Governors

Lizzie Jones

Accounting Officer
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Barnet and Southgate College
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Notes

2018

2017

£'ooo

£'ooo

As
Restated

Cash inflow from operating activities
Surplus/(deficit)forthe year

3,392

1,835

2.164

2,316

Adjustment for non cash items
Depreciation
(Increase)/decreasein stocks
(Increase)/decreasein debtors
Increase/(decrease) in creditors due within one year
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
Pensions costs less contributions payable
Deferred capital grants released to income

30
974

(14)

1,356

3,283
3,626

281

(4,571)
330

(664)

(770)

Adjustment for investing or financing activities
Investment income
Interest payable
(Profit) on sale of fixed assets

(61)

1.826

Net cash flow from operating activities

(7)

(4,875)

1,768
(3,233)

4,423

4,563

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Investment income
Deferred capital grants received
Payments made to acquire fixed assets

6,645
61

7,044
7

2,379

1.216
(5,041)

(4,382)

2.880

5.047

(1,012)
(852)

(1,067)
(575)

1,864:

.1,642

5,439

7,968

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid
Repayments of amounts borrowed

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

17

17,595

9,628

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

17

23.035

17.595
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Barnetand Southgate College
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 July 2018
1.

Accountingpolicies

Statementof accounting policies and estimation techniques
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material
in relation to the financial statements.

Basis ofpreparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Sfafemenf of Recommended Practice:

Accountingfor Further and Higher Education2015 (\he 20q5 FE HE SOAP\, the CollegeAccounts Directionfor
2077 to 2078 and in accordancewith FinancialReportingStandard 102 -- "TheF/nancia/Repo/f/ngStandard
app/flab/e/n fhe United Kingdomand Repuh//cof /re/and" (FRS 102). The College is a public benefit entityand has
therefore applied the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS 102.
The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the College's accounting policies.

Basis ofaccounting
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention as modified by the use of
previous valuations as deemed cost at transition for certain non-current assets.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the College and its subsidiaries, Minchenden Business Centre
Limited, controlled by the Group. Control is achieved where the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Intra-group sales and profits are eliminated
fully on consolidation. In accordance with FRS 102, the activities of the student union have not been consolidated
because the College does not control those activities.

All financial statements are made up to 31 July 2018.

Going concern
The activities of the College. together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance are set
out in the Members Report. The financial position of the College, its cashflow. liquidity and borrowings are presented
in the Financial Statements and accompanying Notes.
The College currently has £17.1m of loans outstanding with bankers on terms negotiated in 2008 (see note 15).
The College's forecasts and financial projections indicate that it will be able to operate within this existing facility and
covenants for the foreseeable future.

Accordinglythe Governors have a reasonableexpectationthat the Collegehas adequate resourcesto continuein
operational existence for the foreseeable future, and for this reason will continue to adopt the going concern basis in
the preparation of its annual financial statements.
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Barnet and Southgate College
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 July 2018 (continued)
1. Accountingpolicies(contd.)
Recognition of income
Revenue grant funding
Government revenue grants include funding body recurrent grants and other grants and are accounted for under the
accrual model as permitted by FRS 102. Funding body recurrent grants are measured in line with best estimates for
the period of what is receivable and depend on the particular income stream involved. Any under or over
achievement for the Adult Skills Budget is adjusted for and reflected in the level of recurrent grant recognised in the
income and expenditure account. The final grant income is normally determined with the conclusion of the year end
reconciliation process with the funding body following the year end, and the results of any funding audits. 16-18
learner-responsive funding is not normally subject to reconciliation and is therefore not subject to contract
adjustments.
The recurrent grant from HEFCE represents the funding allocations attributable to the current financial year and is
credited direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Grants from non-government sources are recognised in income when the College is entitled to the income and

performance related conditions have been met. Income received in advance of performance related conditions being
met is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the balance sheet and released to income as the
conditions are met.

Capitalgrantfunding
Government capital grants are capitalised, held as deferred income and recognised in income over the expected
useful life of the asset, under the accrual model as permitted by FRS 102. Other capital grants are recognised in
income when the College is entitled to the funds subject to any performance related conditions being met.
Fee income
Income from tuition fees is stated gross of any expenditure which is not a discount and is recognised in the period
for which it is received.
Investment Income
All income from short-term deposits is credited to the income and expenditure account in the period in which it is
earned.
Agency arrangements
The College acts as an agent in the collection and payment of certain discretionary support funds. Related payments
received from the funding bodies and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the income and
expenditure of the College where the College is exposed to minimal risk or enjoys minimal economic benefit related

tothetransaction.

Accounting for post-employmentbenefits
Post employment benefits to employees of the College are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) and
the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). These are defined benefit schemes. which are externally funded
and contracted out of the State Second Pension, and the assets are held separately from those of the College.

The TPS is an unfundedscheme.Contributionsto the TPS are calculatedso as to spread the cost of pensionsover
employees'working liveswith the Collegein such a way that the pension cost is a substantiallylevel percentageof
current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by qualified actuaries on the basis of
valuations using a prospective benefit method. The TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient
information available to use defined benefit accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution plan
and the contributions recognised as an expense in the income statement in the periods during which services are
rendered by employees.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 July 2018(continued)
l

Accounting policies (contd.)

BarnesLocal GovernmentPension Scheme{LGPS}
The LGPS is a funded scheme. The assets of the LGPS are measured using closing fair values. LGPS liabilities

are measuredusing the projectedunit credit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality
corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least
triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current
service costs and the costs of scheme introductions. benefit changes. settlements and curtailments. They are

Includedas part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/assetis also recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and
interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the
beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest

incomeon the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognisedin interest and other

financecosts.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognisedimmediatelyin other recognised gains and losses
Short term employment benefits
Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay) are recognised as an

Enhanced Pensions
The actual cost of any enhanced continuing pension to a former member of staff is paid by the College annually. An
estimate of the expected future cost of any enhancement to the continuing pension of a former member of staff is
charged in full to the college's income and expenditure account in the year that the member of staff retires. In
subsequent years a charge is made to provisions in the balance sheet using the enhanced pension spreadsheet
provided bythe funding bodies.

Non-current Assets - Tangible Fixed Assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Certain

items of fixed assets that had been revalued to fair value on or prior to the date of transition to the 2015 FE HE
SORP, are measuredon the basisof deemed cost. being the revalued amountat the date of that revaluation.
Landandbuildings
Land and buildings inherited from the Local Education Authority are stated in the balance sheet at valuation on the
basis of depreciated replacement cost as the open market value for existing use is not readily obtainable. The
associated credit is included in the revaluation reserve. The difference between depreciation charged on the
historic cost of assets and the actual charge for the year calculated on the revalued amount is released to the
income and expenditure reserve on an annual basis.
Building improvements and additions made since July 2000 are included in the balance sheet at cost. Freehold land
is not depreciated. Freehold and leasehold buildings are depreciated over their expected useful economic life to the
College of 50 years. The College has a policy of depreciating major adaptations to buildings over the period of their
useful economic life of 50 years.
Where land and buildings are acquired with the aid of specific grants, they are capitalised and depreciated as
above. The related grants are credited to a deferred capital grant account. and are released to the income and
expenditure account over the expected useful economic life of the related asset on a basis consistent with the
depreciation policy.
Finance costs, which are directly attributable to the construction of land and buildings. are not capitalised as part of

the cost ofthose assets.
A reviewfor impaimlent of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstancesindicatethat the
carrying amount of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets

and their recoverableamounts are recognisedas impairments. Impairment losses are recognisedin the income

and expenditureaccount.
A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstancesindicatethat the
carrying amount of any fixed asset may not be recoverable.

Land and buildings acquired between incorporationand July 2000 are included at a frozen valuation on adoption of
FRS 102. the College followed the transitional provision to retain the book value of land and buildings, which were
revalued in 1994, as deemed cost but not to adopt a policy of revaluations of these properties in the future.
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l

Accounting policies (contd.)

Assets under construction
Assets under construction are accounted for at cost. based on the value of architects' certificates and other direct
costs. incurred to 31 July. They are not depreciated until they are brought in use
Subsequent expenditureon existing fixed assets
Where significant expenditureis incurred on tangible fixed assets it is charged to the income and expenditure
account in the period it is incurred. unless it meets one of the following criteria. in which case it is capitalised and

depreciatedonthe relevantbasis
Asset capacity increases
Substantial improvement in the quality of output or reduction in operating costs
Significant extension of the asset's life beyond that conferred by repairs and maintenance
Market value of the fixed asset has subsequentlyimproved
Equipment
Equipmentcosting less than fl ,000 per individual item is written off to the income and expenditure account in the
period of acquisition.All other equipment is capitalised at cost. Equipment inherited from the local education
authority is included in the balance sheet at valuation.
All other equipmentis depreciated over its useful economic life as follows
equipment- 5 years on a straight-line basis
motor vehicles - 4 years on a straight-line basis
computer equipmentand softwares - 5 years on a straight-line basis
furniture. fixturesand fittings -- 10 years on a straight-line basis
Where equipment is acquired with the aid of specific grants, it is capitalised and depreciated in accordance with the
above policy. with the related grant being credited to a deferred capital grant account and released to the income
and expenditure account over the expected useful economic life of the related equipment.

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenditurein the period in which they are incurred

Leased Assets
Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term to the Statement of
ComprehensiveIncome and Exependiture.Any lease premiums or incentives relating to leases signed after lst
August 2014 are spread over the minimum lease term. The College has taken advantage of the transitional
exemptions in FRS 102 and has retained the policy of spreading lease premiums and incentives to the date of the
first market rent review for leases signed before I't August 2014.

Investments
Investment in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment in the individual financial statements
Inventories
Stocks are stated at the lower of their cost and net realisable value. Where necessary. a provision is made for
obsolete, slow moving and defective stocks.
Taxation
The College is consideredto pass the tests set out in Paragraph I Schedule 6 Finance Act 2010 and therefore it
meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporationtax purposes. Accordingly, the College is potentially
exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by sections 478-488
of the CorporationTaxation Act 2010, or section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992. to the extent
that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.
The College is partially exempt in respect of Value Added Tax, so that it can only recover a minor element of VAT
charged on its inputs. Irrecoverable VAT on inputs is included in the costs of such inputs and added to the cost of
tangible fixed assetsas appropriate. where the inputs themselves are tangible fixed assets by nature. The College's
subsidiary companies are subject to corporation tax and VAT in the same way as any commercial organisation
Profits made by the College's trading subsidiaries would be liable to corporation tax
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l

Accounting policies (contd.)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash includes cash in hand. deposits repayable on demand. Deposits are repayable on demand if they are in
practice available within 24 hours without penalty.

Financialliabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument's contractual
obligations. rather than the financial instrument's legal form.
All loans, investments and short term deposits held by the Group are classified as basic financial instruments in
accordance with FRS 102. These instruments are initially recorded at the transaction price less any transaction
costs (historical cost). FRS 102 requires that basic financial instruments are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. however the Group has calculated that the difference between the historical cost and amartised cost basis is
not material and so these financial instruments are stated on the balance sheet at historical cost. Loans and
investments that are payable or receivable within one year are not discounted.

Foreign currency translation
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the financial period with all resulting exchange differences being taken to income in
the period in which they arise.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event. It is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Where the effect of the time value of money is material. the amount expected to be required to settle the obligation
is recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a
finance cost in the statement of comprehensive income in the period it arises.
A contingent liability arises from a past event that gives the College a possible obligation whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the College.
Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but are disclosed in the notes to the financial

statements.
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l

Accounting policies (contd.)

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In preparing these financial statements. management have made the following judgements:
Determine whether leases entered into by the College either as a lessor or a lessee are operating or finance
leases. These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred from the lessor to the lessee on a lease by lease basis.
Determine whether there are indicators of impairment of the group's tangible assets. including goodwill.
Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability and expected future
financial performance of the asset and where it is a component of a larger cash-generating unit. the viability and
expected future performance of that unit.
Other key sources of estimation uncertainty

Tangibfefixedassets
Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties. are depreciated over their useful lives taking into account
residual values. where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and
may vary depending on a number of factors. In re-assessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation
and maintenance programmes are taken into account. Residual value assessments consider issues such as
future market conditions. the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values.

Local GovernmentPension Scheme
The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions.
which are disclosed in note 26. will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward
approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2013 has been used
by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 July 2018. Any differences between the figures derived from
the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension

liability
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2

Funding councilgrants

Yearended31July

2018

Recurrent grants

Specific Grants
Education and Skills Funding Agency
Releases of government capital grants

2017

College

£'ooo

£'ooo

Group
£'ooo

College
£'ooo

5.969
664

Total

3

2017

Group

30.653 30,653
137
137

Education and Skills Funding Agency
Higher Education Funding Council

30.318 30,068
296
296

5,969

5,303

664

770

5,303
770

37.422 37,422

36.687 36.437

Yearended31July

Yearended31July

Tuition fees and education contracts

2018

Adult education fees
Apprenticeship fees and contracts
FeesforFEloan supported courses
Fees for HE loan supported courses
Internationalstudents fees
Total tuition fees
Education contracts

2018

2017

2017

Group

College

Group

College

£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo

1.002

996

986

986

4

1,555
1,433

41

41

56

1,555
1,495
56

3,847

3.841

4,034

4,092

9

9

666

663

3,856

3,851

4,700

4,7s$

1,390
1,414

Total

4

Yearended 31 July

2018

1,390
1,414

other grants and contracts

Yearended31July

2018

Other grants and contracts

Total

36

Year ended 31 July

2018

2017

2017

Group

College

£'ooo

£'ooo

Group
£'ooo

College
£'ooo

2

2

2

2
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5

other income
Year ended 31 July
2018

Group
£'ooo
398
728

Catering and residences
Other income generating activities
Miscellaneous income

2018

College
£'ooo
698

135

Yearended31July

2017

2017

Group

College

£'ooo

£'ooo

416
718
206

871

698

871

Total

6

Investment income

Yearended31July

2018

Bankinterestreceivable

37

2018

Yearended31July
2017

2017

Group

College

Group

College

£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo

61

61

61

61

7

7

Barnet and Southgate College
Notesto the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 July 2018(continued)
7

Staff costs - Group and College

The average number of persons (including key management personnel) employed by the College during the
year, described as full-time equivalents, was:
2018
2017
No.
No.
Teaching staff
Non teaching staff

233
229

230
259

462

489

Staffcosts forthe above persons
2018
College
£'ooo

2017

2017

Group
£'ooo

Group
£'ooo

College

16,355

16.032

16,462

1.580
3,845
15

1.550

1,604

1,582

3.816

3,563

3.542

15

53

53

21,414
3,084

21,682

3.221

21,392
2,954

25,016
258

24,498
235

24,705

25,274

24.733

25,217

2018

Wagesandsalaries
Socialsecuritycosts
Otherpensioncosts
Holiday accrual

21,795

Payrollsub total
Contracted out staffing services

Fundamental restructuring costs - contractual

3.023

512

£'ooo
16,215

24,346
512

24,858

Key managementpersonnel
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning. directing and
controlling the activities of the College and are represented by the Executive Leadership Group which comprises
the Principal and Chief Executive, Director of Finance & Corp Operations. Director of Employer Partnerships,
Director of Organisational Development and Director of Quality & Learner Experience. Staff costs include any
compensation paid for loss of office.

Emoluments of Key management personnel, Accounting Officer and other higher paid staff
The number of senior post-holders and other staff who received emoluments, excluding pension and national
insurance contributions but including benefits in kind. in the following ranges was
Senior post-holden
Other staff
2018
2017
2018
2017
No.
No.
No.
No.
£60.001 to £70.000
£70.001 to £80.000
£80.001 to £90.000
£90.001 to £100.000

6

2

£100.001to £110.000
£110.001to £120.000
£120.001to£140.000
£140,001to £160.000

In addition to the above. one senior postholder left during 2017-18 having accrued emoluments in the range

£40.000to£50.000
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7

Staff costs - Group and College (cont)

Key management personnel compensation is made up as follows

Salaries

Employers National Insurance
Pension contributions

Total emoluments

2018

2017

£'ooo

£'ooo

380
49
429

434
60

98

118

527

612

494

There were no amounts due to key management personnel that were waived in the year. The college has cycle
to work and child care vouchers salary sacrifice arrangements in place.
The above compensation includes amounts payable to the Accounting
Officer (who is also the highest paid officer) of:
Salaries

Pension contributions

8

2017

£'ooo

151

150
43

50

other operating expenses

Yearended31July

2018

Teaching costs
Non teaching costs
Premises costs

Total

Other operating expenses include
Auditors' remuneration:
Financial statements audit
Internal audit
Other services provided by the financial statements
Other services provided by the internal auditors
Hire of plant and machineryunder operating leases

9

2018

£'ooo

Yearended31July

2018

2017

2017

Group
£'ooo

College
£'ooo

Group

College

£'ooo
As
Restated

£'ooo
As
Restated

7,580
4.496

7,386

2,745

7.527
4.444
2.560

2,606

7,347
4,670
2,446

14.821

14,531

14,933

14,463

4,941

2018

2017

£'ooo

£'ooo

40

46

51

24

40

100

Interest payable - Group and College

On bank loans, overdrafts and other loans
Interest on enhanced pension provision
Pension finance costs(note 26)

Total

39

2018

2017

£'ooo

£'ooo

1.012
1,012

1,037
1,037

814

30
701

1.826

1.768
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10 Tangible fixed assets (Group)
Assets in the
Land and buildings
Freehold

Equipment Course
of

Total

Construction

Long

leasehold
£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo

71,429
20,004
3,414

1.280

4,505

20,004
(20,004)

97.218

1.264

363

5.041

94,847

1,280

5,769

363

102,259

15.168

591

2,934

18,693

1,411

86

667

2.164

At 31 July 2018

16,579

677

3,601

20.857

Net book value at31 July 2018

78.268

603

2,168

Net book value at31 July 2017

56.261

689

1.571

Costorvaluation
At I August2017
Transfers
Additions
Disposals

At 3'1July 20'18
Depreciation

At I August2017
Charge for the year
Elimination in respect of disposals

40

363

81.402

20.004

78.525

Barnetand Southgate College
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10 Tangible fixed assets (College only)

Land and buildings

Equipment

Assets in the
Course of

Total

Construction

Costorvaluation
At I August2017
Transfers
Additions

Freehold

Long
leasehold

£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo

71.429
20,004

1,280

4.262

20,004
(20,004)

96,975

1.249

363

5,026

363

102,001

3,414

Disposals

At 31 July 2018

94,847

1,280

5,511

Depreciation
At I August2017

15.167

591

2,713

18.471

86

657

2.154

20,625

Charge for the year
Elimination in respect of disposals

1,411

At 31 July 2018

16,578

677

3,370

Netbook value at31 July 2018

78.269

603

2.141

363

81.376

Net book value at31 July 2017

56.262

689

1.549

20.004

78.504

Land and buildings which then belonged to Barnet College were revalued at 31st July 1998 on the basis of
depreciation replacement cost by CB Hillier Parker Ltd in accordance with guidance ussued by the Royal
Institute of Chartered Surveyors. Land and buildings which then belonged to Southgate College were revalued
at 31 st July 1994 on the basis of depreciated cost by the London Borough of Enfield in accordance with

guidance issued by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.
Buildings with a net book value of £21 .461 k have been partially financed by exchequer funds through the

receipt of capital grants. Should these assets be sold, the College may be liable. under the terms of the
Financial Memorandumwith the LSC and its successor organisatians. to surrender the proceeds.
If fixed assets had not been revalued they would have been included at the following historical cost
Freehold
Land and

Buildings
Cost or Valuation
Aggregate depreciation
Netbook value based on cost

73.166
'10.504'
62.662

Duringthe year. an addiitonalgain on the disposal of land and buildingsat GrahamePark Way was realised of
fl .6 million.
A gain of £3.2 millionwas realised on the disposal of the GrasebyHousebuilding in Barnet,which had been
heldfor disposalin 2017.
The gain in 2017 also relatesto gainsfrom the disposalof the GrahamePark Way site.
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11 Non current Investments
College

College

2018

2017

£'ooo

£'ooo

Investments in subsidiary companies

Total
The College owns 100 per cent of the issued ordinary fl shares of Minchenden Business Centre Limited (MBC
Ltd) a company incorporated in England and Wales whose principal acitivity during the year was providing a
range of courses and training to commercial and other organisations. primarily with the motor and allied trades
and insurance industry. leading to qualifications recognised by the ATA, IMI and other professional bodies. This
investment was written down to f nil in 2014.

12 Debtors

Group

College

Group

2018

2018

2017

2017

£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo

College

As

As

Restated

Restated

2,642
268

2,636
266

983

613
1,297

Amounts falling due within one year
Trade receivables
Other debtors
Amounts owed by group undertakings
Subsidiary undertakings
Prepayments and accrued income
Taxation and soclalsecurity

1.182

1,176

70

68

1,683

1.981

886
16

2.935

Total

42

4.111

3.909

4,812
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13 Creditors: amountsfalling due within one year

Bankloans and overdrafts
Capital creditors
Trade payables
Other taxation and social security
Accruals and deferred income

Group

College

Group

2018

2018

2017

2017

£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo

704

704

143

143

3,194

3.179
1.815

707
1.072
1.693

707
1,072
1,673
1,316

1,801

1,568
610
2,718

Deferred income - government capital grants

Other creditors

Total

l0.738

1.31 1

College

1.551

846

B46

610

610

610

2.686

4.769

4,746

10.688

11.008 10.970

14 Creditors: amountsfalling due after one year
Group

College

Group

2018

2018

2017

2017

£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo

Deferred income - government capital grants

16,394
23,268

16.394
23,268

17.243
22.716

17,243
22.716

Total

39.662 39.662

39.959 39.959

Group

College

Group

2018

2018

2017

2017

£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo

704

Bankloans

College

15 Maturity of debt
Bank loans and overdrafts
Bank loans and overdrafts are repayable as follows

College

In one yearorless
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
In five years or more

746

704
746

707
749

707
749

2.451
13,198

2.451
13,198

2,511
13.983

13,983

Total

17.099

17.099

17.950

17.950

2,511

A loan facility of £28,395k was entered into by the Corporation on 16 September 2008. As at 31 July 2012,
£20.300k had been dra\wn.Interest on the principal element of the £19.742k loan is fixed at a rate of 5.785%
until 24 June 2033. All other amounts drawn are on a variable revolving loan facility. The loan is secured on a
portion of the freehold land and buildings of the College.
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16 Provisions
Defined
benefit

Enhanced
pensions

Total

£'ooo

£'ooo

628

30.663

Obligations Restructuring
£'ooo

At I August2017

30,035

Expenditurein the period
Transferred from income and expenditure account
Actuarial loss/(gain) during the year

1,767
(1.736)
(2.744)

At 31 July 2018

27.322

£'ooo

1.767

(1.736)
(2,744)

628

27,950

The enhanced pension provision relates to the cost of staff who have already left the College's employ and
commitments for reorganisation costs from which the College cannot reasonably withdraw at the balance sheet
date. This provision has been recalculated in accordance with guidance issued by the funding bodies.

17 Cash and cash equivalents

At I August

Cash flows

2017

£'ooo
Cash and cash equivalents
Overdraft

17,595

Total

17,595

18 Deferred Capital Grants (Group and College)

At I August2017
Cashreceived
Releasedto incomeand expenditure

Other

2018

£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo

23.035

Funding Body

Other

Grants
£'ooo

Grants
£'ooo

Total
£'ooo

21,063

2.263
1.216
(209)

23,326

3,270

23,878

20,608

44

23,035

5,440

(455)

At 31 July 2018

At 31 July

changes

1,216
(664)
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19 Revaluation reserve (Group and College)
2018

2017

£'ooo

£'ooo

At I August
Transferfrom revaluationreserveto general reserve in respectof
Revaluationassets
Depreciationon revaluedassets

11,078

11,481

(203)

(403)

At31 July

l0.875

11.078

20 Movement on general reserves

Group

College

Group

2018

2018

2017

2017

£'ooo

£'ooo

£'ooo
Restated

£'ooo
As
Restated

8.767
(500)
8.267

9,560
(500)
9,060

1.835

1.909

As

College

Income and expenditure account reserve
As originally disclosed
Prior Year Adjustment
Income and expenditure account including pension reserve
Surplus/(Loss) retained for the year

11,524

12,391

(750)

l0,774

(750)
11.641

3,392

3.665

Transfer from revaluation reserve on depreciation and sale

ofinherited assets
Actuarial gain/(loss) in respect of pension scheme (note

At 31July

203

3,808
9,317

10;77i

(27,322)

(27,322)

(30,035)

(30,035)

45,499
18,177

46.639
19,317

40,809

41,676

l0,774

11,641

18,'

Balance represented by:
Pension reserve (note 26)
Income and expenditure account reserve excluding
pension reserve

At 31July
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269

203

3.808

403
269
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21 Capital commitments
Group and College

2018

£'ooo

2017

£'ooo

62

Commitments contracted for at 31 July

888

Authorisedbut not contractedat 31 July

4.660

22 Lease Obligations

At 31 July the College had minimumlease paymentsunder non-cancellableoperating leasesas follows
Group and College

2018

2017

£'ooo

£'ooo

203
299

212
339

502

551

100

100

100

100

Future minimum lease payments due
Land and buildings
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years

Other
Not later than one year

23 Contingentliabilities
No contingent liabilities existed at the end of the accounting period

24 Events after the reporting period
There are no events after the reporting period

25 Prior Year Adjustment
The College has reviewed its accounting treatment for subcontracted provision and has decided to change its
accounting policy to recognise all payments in full as they except where there is clear evidence that will not be
payable. The effect of this adjustment is to reduce the reserves at I July 2016 by £500,000 and to increase the
accruals brought forward at that date by the same amount.

The effect of this change as it relates to the year ended 31 July 2017 is to increase costs by £250.000. reduce
prepayments by £750,000 and reduce the reserves at 31 July 2017 by £750.000.
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26 Defined benefit obligations
The College's employees belong ta two principal post-employment benefit plans: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staffs and the London Borough of Barnet Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Capita. Both are multi-employer defined-

benefit plans.
Totalpension costforthe

year

Teachers Pension Scheme: contributions paid
Local Government Pension Scheme:

2018

2017

£'ooo

£'ooo

1.348

Contributionspaid
FRS 102 (28) charge

1.783

1,525
330

281

Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive

1,383

2.064

1,855

3,412

3,238

Income

Total pension cost to income and expenditure
Enhanced pension charge to Statement of

Comprehensive Income

(164)

Total Pension Cost for Year

3.412

3.074

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest
formal actuarial valuation of the TPS was 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31 March 2018.
There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or end of the financial year.
Contributions of £393K (2017: £205k) were payable to the LGPS scheme as at 31 July.

Teachers' Pension Scheme
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme. governed by the
Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2010. and. from I April 2014. by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations
2014. These regulations apply to teachers in schools and other educational establishments. including
academies. in England and Wales that are maintained by local authorities. In addition, teachers in many
independent and voluntary-aided schools and teachers and lecturers in some establishments of further and
higher education may be eligible for membership. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers and lecturers
and. from I January 2007, automatic too for teachers and lecturers in part-time employment following
appointment or a change of contract. Teachers and lecturers are able to opt out of the TPS.

The Teachers' Pension Budgeting and Valuation Account
Although teachers and lecturers are employed by various bodies. their retirement and other pension benefits
including annual increases payable under the Pensions (Increase) Acts are, as provided for in the
Superannuation Act 1972, paid out of monies provided by Parliament. Under the unfunded TPS. teachers'
contributions on a 'pay-as-you-go ' basis. and employers' contributions, are credited to the Exchequer under
arrangements governed by the above Act.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme
The latest actuarial review of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2012 and in accordance with The Public
Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valuation report was published by
the Department for Education (the Department) on 9 June 2014. The key results of the valuation are:
- employer contribution rates were set at 16.48% of pensionable pays
- total scheme liabilities for service to the effective date of £191 .5 billion. and notional assets of
£176.6 billion, giving a notional past service deficit of £14.9 billions
- an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay.
A full copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation can be found on the Teachers' Pension Scheme
website at the following location:
https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2014/06/publication-of-the-valuation-report.aspx
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26

Definedbenefit obligations(continued)

Scheme Changes
Followingthe Hutton report in March 201I and the subsequent consultations with trade unions and other
representative bodies on reform of the TPS, the Department published a Proposed Final Agreement. setting out

the designfor a reformedTPS to be implementedfrom I April 2015.
The key provisions of the reformed scheme include: a pension based on career average earningsl an accrual
rate of 1/57thl and a Normal Pension Age equal to State Pension Age. but with options to enable members to
retire earlier or later than their Normal Pension Age. Importantly, pension benefits built up before I April 2015
will be fully protected.
In addition. the Proposed Final Agreement includes a Government commitment that those within 10 years of
Normal Pension Age on I April 2012 will see no change to the age at xrvhichthey can retire. and no decrease in
the amount of pension they receive when they retire. There will also be further transitional protection. tapered
over a three and a half year period. for people who would fall up to three and a half years outside of the 10 year
0
protection
Regulationsgiving effect to a reformed Teachers' Pension Scheme came into force on I April 2014 and the
reformed scheme commenced on I April 2015.
The pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £2.103,374(2017: £2.159.503)

FRS 102 (28)
Under the definitions set out in FRS 102 (28.1 1). the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme The College is
unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme.
Accordingly.the College has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its
contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined-contribution plan. The College has set out above the
information available on the plan and the implications for the College in terms of the anticipated contribution
rates
a
LocaIGovernment Pension Scheme
The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit plan. with the assets held in separate funds adminstered by London
Borough of Barnet. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 July 2018 was £2.176,334, of which

employer's contributions totalled fl ,783.247 and employees' contributions totalled £393,087. The agreed

contributionrates for future years are 23.8% for employersand range from 5.5%to 12.5%cent for employees

dependingon salary.
Principal ActuariaIAssumptions
The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the
fund at 31 March 2018

Rateof increasein salaries
Futurepensionsincreases
Discountrate for schemeliabilities
Inflationassumption(CPI)
Commutation of pensions to lump sums
The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future
improvements in mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on

retirement
age65 are:

At 31 July

At 31 July

2018

2017

2.70%
2.70%
2.80%
2.40%
50%

2.80%
2.50%
2.70%
3.20%

At 31 July

At 31 July

50%

2018

2017

years

years

Retiring today

Males
Females

21.90
24.30

21.20
24.30

Retiringin 20 years

Males
Females

23.90

26.50

23.90
26.50

48

Barnet and Southgate College
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 July 2018 (continued)
26 Defined benefit obligations (continued)

Local Government Pension Scheme (Continued)
The College's share of the assets in the plan and the expected rates of return were

Plan assets

Plan assets
as a
percentage

oftotalplan

as a
percentage
Fair Value

assets 31
July 2018

oftotalplan

Fair Value

assets 31

at31 July

July 2017

2017
£'ooo

21,350
11,042

71%
29%
o%

23.811

4,417

o%

0

at 31July
2018

£'ooo

Gilts

58%
30%
o%

Cash

12%

Equities
Bonds

0

33.536

36.809

Total market value of assets

9,725

Weighted average expected long term rate of
2.90%

return

5.80%

Actual return on plan assets
The amount included in the balancesheet in respect of the defined benefit pension plan and enhanced
pensions benefits is as follows:

2018

Fairvalue ofplan assets
Presentvalue of plan liabilities

£'ooo

36,809
(64,131)

33,536
(63,541)

'27.3221

:30
r30.0351

Present value of unfunded liabilities

Netpensionsliability(Note

17)

2017

£'ooo

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the plan are as follows
2018
£'ooo

£'ooo

2,402

1.855

31

101

2,433

1,956

:814:

:701

8141

1701

2017

Amounts included in staff costs
Current service cost
Past sewice cost
Total

Amounts included in investment income
Net interest income

Amounts recognised in Other ComprehensiveIncome
Return on pension plan assets
Experience losses arising on defined benefit obligations
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of plan liabilities
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
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1,064
31

2.713
3,808

(1,902)

7.932
5,925
105
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26 Defined benefit obligations (continued)

Local Government Pension Scheme (Continued)

Movementin net dfefined benefit (liability/asset during the year
Surplus/(deficit) in scheme at I August 2017
Movement in year:
Current service cost
Employer contributions
Net interest on the defined (liability)/asset

Pastservice cost
Actuarial gain or loss

2018

2017

£'ooo

£'ooo

(30,035)

(29.008)

(2.402)
2.152
(814)
(31)

(1,855)
1,525
(701)

3.808

Net defined benefit (liability)/asset at 31 July 2018

:27,322]

(101)
105
:30,035

Asset and Liability Reconciliation
2018

2017

£'ooo

£'ooo

(63,571)
(2.402)
(1.736)

(63,020)
(1.855)
(1,524)
(387)

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations
Defined benefit obligations at start of period
Current Service cost
Interestcost
Contributions by Scheme participants
Experience gains and losses on defined benefit obligations
Changes in financial assumptions
Estimated benefits paid
Pastservice costs

Defined benefit obligations at end of period

(397)

2

2,744

2,007

1,262

1,307
'101

:31

:64.131

r63.571

Reconciliation of Assets
Fair value of plan assets at start of period

33.536
922
1.064
2.152

Intereston plan assets
Return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Contributions by Scheme participants
Estimated benefits paid

397
1.262)

36.809

Assets at end of period

The estimated value of employer contributions for the year ended 31st July 2018 will be £2,177m
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34.012
823

(1.902)
1,525
387

'1,309
33.536

Barnet and Southgate College
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 July 2018 (continued)
27 Related party transactions
Owing to the nature of the College's operations and the composition of the board of governors being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, it is inevitable that transactions will take place with organisations in
which a member of the board of governors may have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations
are conducted at arm's length and in accordance with the College's financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures.
The College is a member of Collab Group. The Collab Group's purpose is to develop a strong Further Education
college sector in England. Transations processed on behalf of Collab Group by the College total anil in the year
(2017: £Nil).
The College has taken advantage of the exemptions allowed under FRS 8 not to disclose its transactions with
its subsidiary undertakings.

No Governor has receivedany remunerationor waived paymentsfrom the Collegeor its subsidiariesduringthe

year(2017:fNil)

28 Amounts disbursed as agent

Learnersupportfunds

Amount unspent previous year
Funding body grants -- bursary support
Funding body grants -- discretionary learner support
Funding body grants -- residential bursaries

2018

2017

£'ooo

£'ooo

413
449
525

481

0

357
119

368
1,755

Other Funding body grants

Disbursed to students
Administration costs
Clawback
Balance unspent as at 31 July. included in creditors

(1.022)
(67)
:253:

443
665

2.065
(1,545)
(78)

413

413

Funding body grants are available solely for students. In the majority of instances. the College only acts as a

paying agent. In these circumstances. the grants and related disbursements are therefore excluded from the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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REPORTINGACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO BARNET
AND SOUTHGATE COLLEGE AND THE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR EDUCATION
ACTING THROUGH THE DEPARTMENTFOR EDUCATION ("the Department")
In accordancewith the terms of our engagement letter and further to the requirementsof the
financial memorandum with the Education and Skills Funding Agency we have carried out an
engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether anything has come to our attention
that would suggest that in all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income
received by Barnes and Southgate College during the period I August 2017 to 31 July 2018
have not been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions
do not conform to the authorities which govern them. The framework that has been applied
is set out in the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice("the Code') issued jointly by the
Department.In line with this framework, our work has specifically not considered income
receivedfrom the main funding grants generated through the IndividualisedLearner Record
(ILR) returns, for which the Department has other assurance arrangementsin place.
This report is made solely to the corporation of Barnet and Southgate College and the
Departmentin accordancewith the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been
undertakenso that we might state to the corporation of Barnet and Southgate College and
the Department those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the corporation of Barnet and Southgate College and the Departmentfor our
work. for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of Barnet and Southgate College and the reporting
accountant
The corporation of Barnet and Southgate College is responsible. under the requirements of
the Further & Higher EducationAct 1992. subsequent legislationand related regulations and
guidance,for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the
purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them. Our responsibilitiesfor this engagement are established in the United
Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report
in accordancewith our engagement letter and the requirements of the Code. We report to
you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that
in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period I
August 2017 to 31 July 2018 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or
that the financial transactionsdo not conform to the authorities which govern them.
Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Code issued by the Department. We
performeda limited assurance engagement as defined in that framework. The objective of a
limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanationsin order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative
conclusionon regularity.A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a
reasonableassurance engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain
assurancethat we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a
reasonableassurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion. Our
engagementincludes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity of
the College's income and expenditure.
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The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes

e

Reviewing the Minutes of the meetings of the Governing Body and other evidence
madeavailableto us
Review of the objectives and activities of the College, with reference to the income
streams and other information available to us as auditors of the College
Testing of a sample of payroll paymentsto staff
Testing of a sample of paymentsto suppliers and other third parties
Testing of a sample of grants received and other income streams

Conclusion
In the course of our work. nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all
material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period I August
2017 to 31 July 2018 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the
financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.
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